Certification

l declare to the best of my knowledge and belief that the attached document(s) are true electronic copies of the executed collective negotiations agreement(s) and the included summary is an accurate assessment of the collective bargaining agreement for the term beginning Tune 23, 202 thru 12-31-2025

Employer:

County:

Date:

Name:

Print Nan

Signature

DIRECTOR F

FERSONI

Collective Bargaining Agreement Certification 2012,04.02.wpd

New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission

NON-POLICE AND FIRE

COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATIONS AGREEMENT SUMMARY FORM

Line#

	SECTION I: Partie	s and Term of Cont	racts			
1	Public Employer:	-umberland	County	County:	nberland Co	unty
2	Employee Organizat	ion: CWA F	Horneys	Number of Employe	es in Unit:	3
3	Base Year Contract 1	Ferm: 2018-	5651	New Contract Term	5055-	2025
	SECTIONAL: Type	of Contract Settlem	ent (please check	only one)		
4	Contract se	ttled without neutral	assistance			
5	Contract se	ttled with assistance o	of modiator			
6	Contract set	ttled with assistance o	of fact-finder			
7	Contract set	tled with assistance o	of super-conciliator			
8	If contract was settle	ed in fact-finding, did t	the fact-finder issue	a report with recom	mendations?	
	Yes No No					
	SECTION III: Salary	/ Base				
	The salary base is the the parties negotiate	e cost of salaries in the the salary increases.	e final year of the ex	pired or expiring agr	eement. This is the b	pase cost from which
9	Salary Costs in Base Y	'ear	\$ 877,	982		
10	Longevity Costs in Ba	se Year	\$			
11	Total Salary Base		\$ 877,	982		
	SECTION IV: Salary	Increases for Each	Year of New Agre	ement*		
		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
12	Effective Date (month/day/year)	11/1/22	1/1/23	1/1/24	1/1/25	
13	Cost of Salary	1 20,510	7 9.553	30831	21397	
14	Increments (\$) Salary Increase Above					
15	Increments (\$) Longevity Increase (\$)					
16	Total \$ Increase	20.510	₹9553	30831	31397	
17	(sum of lines 13-15) New Salary Base (\$)	-	7			The second secon
18	Percentage increase over prior year	7,3%	1928045	958,876	990273	<u> </u>
	*If contract duration i	s longer than five yea	rs, please add an ad	ditional page.		

SECTION V: Increases in Other Contractual Economic Items or Newly Added Economic Items*

19	Item Description	Base Year Cost (\$)	Year 1 Increase (\$)	Year 2 Increase (\$)	Year 3 Increase (\$)	Year 4 Increase (\$)	Year 5 Increase (\$)
]		
20	Totals(\$):		5	1			

^{*}If contract duration is longer than five years, please add an additional page.

	SECTION VI: Medical Costs		
		Base Year	Year 1
21	Health Plan Cost	\$ [155.258	\$ 133 214
22	Prescription Plan Cost	\$ 46,284	\$ 50,218
23	Dental Plan Cost	\$ 3101	\$ 3,101
24	Vision Plan Cost	\$ 796	\$ 1,063
25	Total Cost of Insurance	\$ 172959	\$ 187,596
26	Employee Insurance Contributions	\$ 34,066	\$ 39411
27	Employee Contributions as % of Total Insurance Cost	19,7%	21.0%

Employ	ver: Cumber and County Employee Organization: CWA Attorneys	Page 3
Sectio	n VI: Medical Costs (continued)	
28	Identify any insurance changes that were included in this CNA. **Mone ** **Proposition** **Proposition**	
29	SECTION VII: Certification and Signature The undersigned certifies that the foregoing figures are true: Print Name: Separate Senesk: Position/Title: Signature: Date:	
	Send this completed and signed form along with an electronic copy of the contract and the signed certif form to: contracts@perc.state.nj.us	ication

NJ Public Employment Relations Commission

Conciliation and Arbitration

PO Box 429

Trenton, NJ 08625

Phone: 609-292-9898

Revised 8/2016

AGREEMENT

between

COMMUNICATIONS WORKERS OF AMERICA LOCAL 1036 ASSISTANT PROSECUTORS RANK AND FILE UNIT

and

THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY PROSECUTOR AND THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 2: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 3: NON-DISCRIMINATION	4
ARTICLE 4: UNION DUES	5
ARTICLE 5: PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS	7
ARTICLE 6: EDUCATION AND TRAINING	8
ARTICLE 7: HOURS OF WORK	9
ARTICLE 8: OFFICE ENVIRONMENT	10
ARTICLE 9: EMPLOYEE SAFETY	11
ARTICLE 10: VACATIONS	12
ARTICLE 11: HOLIDAYS	13
ARTICLE 12: SICK LEAVE	14
ARTICLE 13: PERSONAL DAYS	15
ARTICLE 14: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	16

	Page
ARTICLE 15: OTHER PAID LEAVE FROM WORK	17
ARTICLE 16: MILITARY LEAVE	18
ARTICLE 17: FAMILY LEAVE	19
ARTICLE 18: WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS	20
ARTICLE 19: UNION RIGHTS AND ACCESS	21
ARTICLE 20: PERSONNEL RECORDS	22
ARTICLE 21: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	23
ARTICLE 22: SALARIES AND WAGES	26
ARTICLE 23: HEALTH BENEFITS	27
ARTICLE 24: LIFE INSURANCE	29
ARTICLE 25: WORK CONTINUITY	30
ARTICLE 26: SEVERABILITY	31
ARTICLE 27: FULLY NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT	32
ARTICLE 28: TERM OF AGREEMENT	33

PREAMBLE

THIS AGREEMENT made this 23rd day of <u>June</u>, 2021, by and between the Cumberland County Prosecutor (hereinafter referred to as the "Prosecutor" or "Employer"), together with the Cumberland County Board of County Commissioners (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), and the Communication Workers of America, Assistant Prosecutors Rank and File Unit (hereinafter referred to as the "Union").

WHEREAS, said Union has been selected as the exclusive bargaining agent by the Employees hereinafter to be defined; and

WHEREAS, said Union has been in negotiations with the Prosecutor and the County; and

WHEREAS, the Union and the Prosecutor and the County have agreed upon certain terms of employment as a result of the negotiations carried on pursuant to law;

NOW, THEREFORE, subject to law as herein provided, the parties hereto, in consideration of the following mutual promises, covenants, and agreements contained herein do herein establish the following terms and conditions which shall govern the activities of the parties and all affected Employees:

ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

- 1. The Prosecutor and the County hereby recognize the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all Assistant Prosecutors, excluding the First Assistant Prosecutor, the Executive Assistant Prosecutor, Trial Chief, Senior Trial Attorneys and/or Team Leaders. The Union and each Employee covered by this Agreement expressly acknowledge the special employment relationship that exists whereby each covered person's employment is "at will" and that each covered Employee serves at the pleasure of the Prosecutor. Nothing herein shall be construed to abrogate state law and statute which defines "at will" employment, and, which vests the Prosecutor with legal powers and responsibilities in the exercise of its law enforcement and police power that cannot be bargained away.
- 2. Whenever titles are used in this Agreement, they shall be understood to include the plural as well as the singular and to include males and females. Except as otherwise specifically noted, a reference to "Employees" or to "Assistant Prosecutors" shall refer to all Employees in the Union covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- 1. All of the rights, power and authority possessed by the Prosecutor prior to the signing of this Agreement, including and not limited to the right to terminate "at will" Assistant Prosecutors, are retained exclusively by the Prosecutor, subject only to such limitations as are specifically provided in this Agreement. It is expressly acknowledged by the Union and the Employees that the Prosecutor has special legal powers which cannot be abridged or otherwise bargained away.
- 2. The Prosecutor hereby retains and reserves, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred and vested by the laws of the State of New Jersey, the Constitution of the State of New Jersey and the Constitution of the United States of America, including but without limitation the following rights, privileges and functions:
 - a. The executive management and administrative control of the Cumberland County Prosecutor's Office, its properties and facilities, the activities of its Employees related to their employment, and the right to impose reasonable rules and regulations governing employment.
 - b. The right to hire all Employees, determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment, their dismissal or demotion, the increase or decrease of salaries, promotion, reassignment and transfer of all such Employees.
 - c. The right to make reasonable rules or procedures, to determine schedules of work, as well as duties, responsibilities and assignments of all Employees, and to decide the number of Employees needed for any particular unit or assignment and to be in sole charge of the quality and quantity of work required.
 - d. The right to determine if, how and when automobiles will be assigned among Assistant Prosecutors, it being further understood that no non-supervisory Assistant Prosecutors covered by this Agreement shall be assigned an automobile and that, to the limited extent that an automobile may be utilized (i.e. see Article 6 only), no County issued automobile may be used in any manner or at any time for personal use.
 - e. The right to terminate or suspend, with or without pay, any Employee with or without cause. There is no right of appeal.
- f. The right to direct and assign the Employees, to plan, direct and control operations, to introduce new or different methods of operations in all respects to carry out the ordinary and customary functions of management as allowed by law and this Agreement.
- g. This Article 2 shall not be modified or altered in substance, scope or application.

ARTICLE 3: NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Employer and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination or favoritism for reasons of sex, age, nationality, race, color, national origin, religion, marital, parental or birth status, political affiliation or Union membership.

ARTICLE 4: UNION DUES

- 1. **Dues Deductions.** The Employer agrees to make payroll deductions of Union dues when authorized to do so by the Employee(s) on the appropriate form. The Union shall certify the amount of such deductions to the Employer. The Employer shall remit the dues to the Union by the tenth calendar day after deductions are made, together with a list of employees from whose pay such deductions were made. Said employee list shall include names, address, and amount of dues deducted and submitted for that period. Dues deductions for employees in the bargaining units shall not be made for any other employee organization. Dues deductions and employee lists shall be sent to: CWA Local 1036, 1 Lower Ferry Road, West Trenton, NJ 08628.
- 2. Withdrawal of Dues Check Off. In the event any Employee withdraws his/her authorization for dues deduction by notice to the Prosecutor's Office, such dues shall be halted as of the earlier of the next January 1 or July 1 following the date on which notice of withdrawal was filed, pursuant to N.J.SA. 52:14-15.9e.
- 3. **Deduction of Representation Fees.** For all employees in the bargaining unit who do not pay dues in accordance with Section 1 above, the Employer shall instead deduct a representation fee equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of regular dues as certified by the Union pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.5 et seq., to be remitted to the Union in the same manner as regular dues in accordance with the aforementioned law and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Public Employment Relations Commission, the Union shall establish a demand-and-return system.
- 4. No Other Employer Obligation. It is agreed that the County and Employer shall have no other obligation or liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with such fees, and that once the funds deducted are remitted to the Union, the disposition of such funds shall be the sole and exclusive responsibility of the Union.
- 5. Hold Harmless. The Union hereby indemnifies, saves and holds the Employer and the County harmless against any and all claims, demands, causes of action or other forms of liability of any kind and nature whatsoever, without limitation, arising from or relating to any action taken by the Employer and the County under this Article 4. The Union shall be responsible to reimburse the Employer and the County for all reasonable attorney(s) fees and

costs incurred of any kind and nature whatsoever, in any legal matter or actions or omissions arising out of this Article 4.

ARTICLE 5: PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

- It shall be the responsibility of the Employer to pay the fees and costs associated with dues
 for membership in and cost of meetings of the Cumberland County Bar Association and
 attendance at the annual Convention and College sponsored by the County Prosecutor's
 Association for New Jersey, as approved in the sole discretion of the Prosecutor, and dues for
 membership in the New Jersey Assistant Prosecutor's Association.
- 2. The Prosecutor shall make direct electronic payment on behalf of Assistant Prosecutors (Employees) for the annual fee due for Attorney Registration payable by all attorneys in the State of New Jersey.

ARTICLE 6: EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Employees covered by this Agreement who attend approved legal education or training courses, shall receive mileage reimbursement at the standard County rate or shall be provided a County vehicle to attend such training. If County vehicles are provided, the Employees shall be required, to the extent reasonable and feasible, to car pool. Any out-of-state travel expenses, including but not limited to airfare, lodging, etc. must be pre-approved by the Prosecutor. The Prosecutor shall pay for the full cost of registration and attendance at legal education or training courses. Employees shall receive regular pay for the hours spent attending the training or legal education. Employees must receive approval from the Prosecutor prior to attending said training or legal education to receive the above benefits.

ARTICLE 7: HOURS OF WORK

- 1. Assistant Prosecutors are professional employees and may be expected to work more than the general office hours set forth in Article 7.2 herein below without additional compensation as necessary to fulfill professional responsibilities and when as directed by the Prosecutor and/or her designee to accomplish specific assignments of a priority nature.
- 2. General office hours are Monday through Friday from 8:30am to 4:30pm.

ARTICLE 8: OFFICE ENVIRONMENT

1. Health and Safety.

- a. The Employer shall at all times maintain safe and healthy working conditions for all Employees covered by this Agreement.
- b. A designated bargaining unit representative shall bring any health and safety concerns to the Prosecutor, or her designee, as the need arises. The parties agree to meet to discuss the concerns within five (5) business days.

2. Office Reference Books.

The Employer agrees to provide each Employee covered by this Agreement with legal reference books and online legal research sources necessary to the responsibilities of Assistant Prosecutors.

3. Meetings with the Prosecutor.

There shall be a meeting between the Prosecutor, or her designee, and the Employees covered by this Agreement on a quarterly basis, if requested in writing by either party, to discuss the general environment and any labor-management issues of the Cumberland County Prosecutor's Office. Such a meeting shall be scheduled by the Union and the Prosecutor through the Chief of Staff. Nothing herein shall preclude the Union from requesting, in writing, additional meetings.

4. Standard Operating Procedures.

- a. The Employer shall provide notice and copy to the Union if Standard Operating Procedures are updated, created, or eliminated.
- b. The Employer will provide notice to the Union of any new hire, promotion, demotion, resignation or retirement, upon approval of such action by the County.

ARTICLE 9: EMPLOYEE SAFETY

The Employer and the Union recognize that the Employees covered by this Agreement, by the very nature of their duties, can be exposed to personal risk in the performance of said duties. Therefore, the Employer and the Union commit to maintain open communication regarding issues affecting Employee safety. This shall include, but not be limited to, building security, parking lot security, security in areas where Employees regularly travel to perform their duties, such as to and from the courthouse, and safety to and from the workplace from home. The Employer and the Union agree to consult and work with appropriate outside governmental agencies on security issues when the need arises.

ARTICLE 10: VACATIONS

- 1. Full-time employees shall be entitled to vacation with pay as follows:
- 2. Employees with less than one full year of service will receive one (1) working day for each month of service. Vacation days must be accrued and will not be advanced.
- 3. Vacation time will be accrued as follows:

Completion of 1 full year of service through 5 full years of service: 12 days

Completion of 5 full years of service through 12 full years of service: 15 days

Completion of 12 full years of service through 20 full years of service: 20 days

Completion of more than 20 full years of service: 25 days

Any new employee hired on or after January 1, 2018 shall receive twenty (20) vacation days per year after the completion of twenty (20) years of service as provided in N.J.A.C. 4:6-1-2(b)(3).

- 4. Employees may take vacations in periods of one-half (½) day increments with the approval of the Prosecutor.
- 5. If there is a conflict in a particular work area in which multiple employees are requesting the same vacations day(s), the senior employee shall have preference. Vacations shall be granted on a first come basis provided work requirements shall be met.
- 6. Employees shall be notified within ten (10) working days of submitting their vacation requests if the request was granted by their supervisor.
- 7. An employee may carry over up to five (5) unused vacation leave days from one year to the next.

ARTICLE 11: HOLIDAYS

1. The official paid holidays, which are recognized holidays for the purposes of this Agreement are as follows:

New Years Day

Labor Day

Martin Luther King Day

Columbus Day

President's Day

General Election Day

Good Friday

Veterans Day

Memorial Day

Thanksgiving Day

Juneteenth Fourth of July Christmas

2. In addition to the aforementioned holidays, the County will grant a holiday when the Governor, in his role as Chief Executive of the State of New Jersey, declares a holiday.

ARTICLE 12: SICK LEAVE

- 1. Sick leave may be utilized by all full-time employees when they are unable to perform their work by reason of personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease or to care for an ill family member.
- 2. Each employee will be granted annual sick leave as follows:
- 3. One working day for each full month of service during the remaining months of the first calendar year of employment and fifteen (15) working days (1¹/₄ per month) for each calendar year thereafter. If an employee begins work after the fifth day of the month, sick leave is not earned for that month.
- 4. In all cases of illness, whether of short or long term, the employee is required to notify his or her superior of the reason for the absence at the earliest possible time but in no event less than his usual possible reporting time, or other time as required, or necessitated by the circumstances. An employee's failure to so notify his or her supervisor may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for that absence and constitute cause of disciplinary action.
- 5. An employee may use sick leave for periods of less than a full work day for any appropriate and approved reason or becoming ill while working.
- 6. When sick leave balances are exhausted, the Employer, at its discretion, may allow an employee to utilize vacation or other accrued leave for an employee's time off due to an illness or injury.
- 7. Employees transferring from one position to another within Cumberland County government will retain accumulated sick leave.

ARTICLE 13: PERSONAL DAYS

Personal Leave:

- 1. All employees covered in the contract shall be granted an annual allowance of four (4) days personal leave with pay. Newly hired employees shall be credited with the right to use such four (4) personal days at the rate of one (1) day for each three (3) months of service. Those leaving the employment of the Prosecutor who have then exceeded the use of personal days shall have the compensation for same deducted on a prorated basis from their last employment check; provided, however, that this shall not apply to retirees.
- 2. Personal leave shall not be cumulative and any such leave credit remaining unused by an employee at the end of the calendar year or upon separation shall be canceled. The employee must notify his supervisor at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance except in a case of bona fide emergency, whereby the supervisor may waive this requirement. Such personal day will be granted if there is no undue burden upon work requirements. The Employer will make every reasonable effort to grant employees the personal days off requested.
- 3. Priority in granting such request for personal leave:
 - (a) Emergencies
 - (b) Observation of religious or other days of celebration
 - (c) Employee personal business
- 4. Personal leave may be taken in conjunction with other types of paid leave.

ARTICLE 14: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- 1. All full-time employees shall be granted a leave of absence not exceeding three (3) working days from the date of death to the day of the funeral because of death of a member of their immediate family; and where the funeral services take place out of State, the leave of absence shall not exceed four (4) working days. Where the body of the deceased is transported into the State of New Jersey, the three (3) days shall be interpreted to mean working days; the three (3) days shall be computed from the time the body of the deceased arrives in New Jersey.
- 2. Immediate family is defined as father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, grandmother, grandfather, grandchildren, brother, sister, mother-in-law and father-in-law, step-mother, step-father, step-son, step-daughter and members of the family living in the same household with the employee. Proof of death may be required.
- 3. Employees may be permitted with prior approval by the Employer to utilize another type of benefit leave time (such as vacation, personal days or sick) in conjunction with bereavement leave.

ARTICLE 15: OTHER PAID LEAVE FROM WORK

- 1. Emergency Leave. Whenever the Prosecutor for weather or other reasons, closes the office early or requires that no Employees report to work, those Employees covered by this Agreement will be paid their regular rate of pay and will not be required to use personal, sick or vacation time.
- 2. **Jury Duty.** Employees covered by this Agreement who are called for jury duty shall not suffer loss of pay for such necessary service. An Employee shall be required to turn over or reimburse the Cumberland County Prosecutor's Office for any per diem fee received for jury duty in such cases.

ARTICLE 16: MILITARY LEAVE

Employees covered by this Agreement who are part of a military service, including the New Jersey National Guard or United States Armed Forces Reserves, shall be entitled to such leave provisions as may be required by law.

ARTICLE 17: FAMILY LEAVE

The Employer and the Union agree that the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), the New Jersey Family Leave Act (FLA), and the NJ Paid Family Leave Act shall be abided by during the term of this contract. Leave time taken under statutory entitlements cannot be stacked or taken consecutively but shall be counted concurrently as time available under the FMLA, FLA, and sick leave as allowed by law.

ARTICLE 18: WORKER'S COMPENSATION BENEFITS

- 1. When an Employee is incapacitated because of a compensable occupational injury, including injury incurred while acting under the authority of N.J.S.A. 2A:158-18, (as determined by a physician designated by the County or the Employer's worker's compensation insurance carrier, representative or administrator), the Employee will be paid his/her full base salary for the initial thirty (30) days of job-related disability without loss of accumulated sick leave benefit time.
- 2. If the Employee remains incapacitated due to an occupational injury or disease beyond the initial thirty (30) day period the Employee will be entitled to worker's compensation benefits as set forth by N.J.S.A. 34:15-1 et seq.
- 3. If the Employee remains incapacitated after the initial thirty (30) day period, the County will continue to remit pension contributions for the Employee during said worker's compensation leave.

ARTICLE 19: UNION RIGHTS AND ACCESS

- 1. Union Stewards and Representatives. The Union has the sole right and discretion to designate employees who are authorized to serve as the Union's representatives, including Stewards and Alternates and Local Executive Board members. The Union will specify the responsibilities and authority of its representatives to act on behalf of the Union. The Union will provide the Employer with a complete list of its Stewards, Alternates, and Union representatives. The Union shall designate as Stewards up to two employees within the bargaining unit. Notice of designation shall be provided to the Prosecutor and County in writing.
- 2. Union Leave. The Employer shall, upon written request from the Union, make reasonable accommodations to allow no more than two designated members of the Union to attend outside Union business such as conventions, meetings and other legitimate activities for not more than three (3) business day each per year. Such designated members shall be appointed by the Union. All expenses incurred during such events will be the responsibility of the Union, except for salaries which shall be paid during such activities.

3. Union Communication and Information.

- a.Reasonable space will be provided by the Employer for Union materials to be posted on centrally located bulletin boards at such work sites as shall be mutually agreed upon. This space shall be designated solely for Union use.
- b. Union representatives whose names have been provided in advance to the Employer shall be admitted to the premises of the Employer on Union business. Requests for visits shall be given with reasonable advance notice to the Employer and shall not be unreasonably denied. Union representatives shall be permitted access to office areas designated by the Prosecutor with the limitation that confidentiality of office operations shall be preserved at all times.
- 4. **Notice.** The Employer will provide notice to the local union president (or designated union representatives) of any new hire, resignation, retirement, promotion or demotion affecting bargaining unit members.

ARTICLE 20: PERSONNEL RECORDS

- 1. Upon reasonable advance written request to the Prosecutor or her designee, an Employee covered by this Agreement may arrange for the inspection of and, in fact inspect all of his/her non-confidential personnel records including copies of any non-confidential disciplinary documents which are placed in the personnel file. Copies of all records requested shall be provided to the Employee. Any reproduction costs shall be paid by the Employee.
- 2. No adverse document shall be placed in any employee's personnel file unless a copy is also provided simultaneously to the employee.

ARTICLE 21: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 1. **Definition.** A grievance is a claimed breach, misinterpretation or improper application of the terms of this Agreement. No grievance shall be permitted relating to the dismissal, demotion, discipline, transfer or reduction in salary of an Employee.
- 2. The purpose of the Grievance Procedure is to secure prompt and equitable resolutions to problems regarding the administration of this Agreement or other terms and conditions of employment.

3. General Procedures.

- a. Grievances may be filed by the Union on behalf of an individual employee or a group of employees, and shall be governed by the procedures set forth herein. The Union may submit a grievance within twenty (20) calendar days of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. The burden of proof in the grievance procedure rests with the grievant or the Union.
- b. The Union may not amend the grievance during any step of the procedure.
- c. Meetings and/or hearings shall be scheduled by the Employer after consultation with the Union as to availability of mutually convenient dates and times within the time limits set forth herein.
- d. The number of days indicated at each step of the grievance procedure shall be considered the maximum. The parties by written consent may alter the time limits.
- e. The lack of response by the Employer within the prescribed time periods, unless time limits have been extended by mutual, written agreement, should be construed as a negative response.
- f. At each step of the procedure, all grievance decisions shall be in writing. The Employer shall provide both the grievant and the Union with a copy of the grievance decision at each step of this procedure.
- g. Any employee scheduled by the parties during his/her working hours to participate in grievance procedures shall suffer no loss in pay or benefits for appearances in grievance hearings. There shall be no claim for compensatory time in the event the grievance hearing extends beyond the employee's normal work day.
- h. Where the employee or the Union requests employee witnesses, permission for a reasonable number of witnesses required during the grievance proceedings will be granted. A witness at such proceedings will be permitted to appear without loss of pay for the time of appearance and without payment for travel time if during his/her normal scheduled working hours. There shall be no claim of compensatory time in the event the grievance hearing extends beyond the witness's normal work day.

- i. The Employer, at any step of the grievance process, may consolidate two or more grievances on the same issue and process them as a group grievance.
- j. A Preliminary Informal Procedure shall be recognized. A Member may orally present and discuss a grievance with his/her immediate supervisor on an informal basis. A verbal disposition of the grievance shall be given to the grievant within five business days. An employee has the option of having a Union Representative present for the discussion. However, the Union shall not be bound by any informal settlement between the employee and his/her supervisor. This informal step does not preclude or mitigate the employee or Union from utilizing the full formal grievance procedure described in this article.

4. Formal Grievance Procedure.

- a. The grievant, through the Union, may present the grievance in writing to the Prosecutor within twenty (20) calendar days of the date the grievant knew or should have known of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance.
- b. If a grievance is filed by an employee, the Union shall be notified by the Prosecutor within five (5) business days.
- c. A "step one" meeting shall be scheduled between the Union Representative and the Prosecutor within twenty (20) business days of receipt of the grievance, at which witnesses may be presented, examined, and cross-examined. A written disposition of the grievance shall be given to the grievant and the Union within ten (10) business days of the meeting.

5. Arbitration.

- a. A grievance which is not satisfactorily resolved at "step one" may be appealed to arbitration only by the Union through its designee within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the Union received the Prosecutor's written disposition of the grievance. If no written decision is received within the allotted timeframe in this Article, then a grievance may be appealed within thirty (30) calendar days from the conclusion of the procedure. If mutually agreed, a pre-arbitration conference may be scheduled for the purpose of attempting to settle the matter and to frame the issue or issues absent a settlement.
- b. The parties herewith agree to utilize the panel of arbitrators maintained by the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission ("PERC") and shall follow the procedures set forth by PERC for grievance arbitration matters. The arbitrator shall be confined to the Agreement and shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, or modify the provisions of the Agreement.
- c. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding consistent with applicable law and this Agreement. The fees and expense of the arbitrator shall be divided equally between the Employer and the moving party. Any other cost of the arbitration proceeding, including the cost of recording, shall be borne by the moving party.

d. The arbitrator shall hold the hearing at a time and place convenient to the parties within thirty (30) calendar days of his/her acceptance to act as arbitrator and shall issue his/her decision within thirty (30) calendar days after the close of the hearing.

ARTICLE 22: SALARIES AND WAGES

1. Bargaining Unit Members will receive annual salaries as attached in Exhibit A, captioned "CWA Cost of Contract Proposal". Employees will advance a step annually. An employee at top step or above will receive the across the board increases indicated. All increases shall be paid January 1st of each year. Step advancement following the term of the Agreement shall be governed by applicable law.

ARTICLE 23: COUNTY HEALTH BENEFITS

- 1. Effective November 1, 2017, Horizon OMNIA shall be established as the base plan. All employees enrolling in health benefits shall be enrolled in the base plan. Employees shall have the option of choosing, as an alternative to OMNIA, between the following medical benefits plans offered by the County: (1) Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey Direct Access (D/A) Plan; (2) Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey Point of Service (POS) Plan; (3) Horizon EPO; and, (4) EPO HSA Design II. (A summary of all current plans is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.)
- 2. Employees shall contribute toward all medical benefits in accordance with the requirement of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011 (Chapter 78). If an employee chooses another plan offered by the County, as identified below, the employee will be responsible for the difference in premium paid by the County (between the OMNIA plan and the plan chosen by the employee) in addition to the applicable Chapter 78 contribution for the base plan.
- 3. Prescription plan co-pays for all County offered health insurance plans shall be \$10.00 for generic prescriptions, \$25.00 for name brand prescriptions and \$50.00 for non-preferred brand name drugs. The stated co-pay shall cover up to a 30-day supply of the prescription; however, where the mail order prescription plan is utilized, the stated co-pay shall cover up to a 90-day supply of the prescription. Employees shall contribute toward their prescription benefits in accordance with the requirement of Chapter 78.
- 4. The County shall have the right to substitute a different insurance carrier or plan to implement a self-insured health benefits plan that provides eligible employees and eligible family members with benefits that are equivalent to or better than the benefits provided under OMNIA, the D/A Plan, POS Plan, Horizon EPO or EPO HSA Design II (whichever is being replaced) now in effect [as modified above].
- 5. In the event that the County seeks to make any subsequent changes in the delivery of health care benefits during the remainder of this Agreement, the County agrees and acknowledges that any such changes are negotiable and will provide the Union with thirty (30) days of notice before any such change is to take place, in order to permit the Union and the County to meet and discuss the proposed change and the effect of such change on bargaining unit employees.
- 6. When an employee has dependent(s) covered under the County Health Benefits Plan and such dependent(s) subsequently become ineligible to participate in the County Health Benefits Plan due to death, divorce, otherwise, the employee shall, within thirty (30) days of

the event triggering the dependent's ineligibility, notify the County Department of Personnel & Human Resources of the change in coverage. If the employee fails to give said notification, the employee shall reimburse the County for expenditures made relating to the insurance coverage of said dependent(s) during the period of ineligibility. Moreover, the employee's failure to provide timely notice is grounds for discipline by the Employer.

- 7. The County dental plan level shall be 50/50 of covered benefit limits, with an employee contribution governed by Chapter 78. Such plan may be replaced by a plan that is equal to or better than the plan in effect at the time of the parties' execution of this Agreement.
- 8. The County shall continue optical coverage equivalent to or better than the current plan with an employee contribution governed by Chapter 78.
- 9. Retiree health benefits shall be provided in accordance with County Policy 2.11 (Health Benefits Insurance), as qualified by any requirements per state and federal law as existed in 2012. Any employee hired prior to 12/31/17 shall be eligible for retiree benefits under County Policy 2.11. There shall be no 80/20 retiree health benefits for any new employee hired after 1/1/18 once said employee reaches Medicare eligibility.
- 10. Employees will be required to make the same percentage contribution as required under Chapter 78 until successor legislation is enacted or a successor contract is negotiated.
- 11. The Emergency Room co-pay for all health insurance plans shall be \$100.00. The co-payment shall be waived if the patient is admitted to the hospital.

ARTICLE 24: LIFE INSURANCE

- 1. The Employer shall provide full-time Employees with life insurance coverage. The County Employee Group Life Insurance Policy Death Benefit shall be in the amount of \$7,500.00.
- 2. When an authorized Leave of Absence without pay due to illness or other emergency leave is granted, life insurance shall be continued for the first thirty (30) days of said leave.
- 3. When an employee is injured on the job, life insurance benefits may be continued by the Employer in its discretion for a period not to exceed one year from the date of the injury provided said injury is recognized as eligible for worker's compensation.

ARTICLE 25: WORK CONTINUITY

The Employees covered by this Agreement agree that, for the life of this Agreement, there will be no strike, slow down, sick out, or other concerted action, nor will there be any individual action, the purpose of which is to induce the Employee to engage in such prohibited activity.

ARTICLE 26: SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid by operation of law, or by a court or by any other legal tribunal of competent jurisdiction as to any or all Employees, such provision shall be inoperative. All other provisions of this Agreement not declared inoperative shall continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 27: FULLY NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT

- 1. The within Agreement is the complete and final Agreement reached between the parties and it contains the resolution of all issues which were the subject of negotiation. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be entitled to and/or required to negotiate with respect to any matter which could have been the subject of negotiation, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and/or whether or not within the knowledge of or contemplation of either or both parties at the time they negotiated or duly executed it.
- 2. This Agreement or any provision thereof may not be modified in whole or in part by the parties unless done so by them in a writing that has been duly reviewed and executed by both parties.

ARTICLE 28: TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective immediately on the date of signing below, and shall continue in full force and effect through December 31, 2025. The parties shall commence negotiations on a successor Agreement pursuant to regulations of the Public Employment Relations Commission. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall carry over and remain in full force and effect until such date as a successor Agreement shall be ratified.

their signatures this 33 ¹⁰ da		ed their duly authorized representatives to affix, 2021.
For the County:		For the Union:
Joseph Derella Cumberland County Commis	Date Sioner Director	Adam Liebtag, CWA, Local 1036) Date
Kim Woo	0622-21	Holf Terull 6/17/21
Cim Wood	Date	Holly A. Fanelle, Asst. Prosecutor Date

For the Prosecutor:

Jenn fer Webb-McRae

Cumberland County Prosecutor

Cumberland County Administrator

EXHIBIT A

	Annual Avg %		3.7%	3.8%	5.3%	5.5%	5.5%	5.5%	5.5%	5.5%	2.5%	2.5%	5.5%	5.5%	7. %r.	2			3.1%
	TOTAL	1	340,174	332,799	307,349	196,282	792,567	795,967	795,367	282,967	282,967	277,242	277,242	271,539	271.539		3,775,686		
2.0%	2025		87,586	82,68/	74 500	005,47	74 500	74,500	74,500	74,500	/4,500	/3,000	73,000	71,500	71,500		990,273	31,397	3.3%
	Step	3, 0	5 8	5 5	<u>ب</u> ک		י כ	y c	.	o (י ס	Λ I	~ ·	4	4				
2.0%	2024	C C	00,809	78,007	72,000	72 000	72,000	72,000	72,000	72,000	72,000	005,07	70,500	69,000	000'69		958,876	30,831	3.3%
	Step	4	5 t	5 σ	, rv	ı LO	ı LO	ı LC) L) L	n <	† <	4 (n	ന				
2.0%	2023	2/ 100	82.360	75,500	69,500	69,500	69,500	69.500	69 500	69 500	000,00	000,00	000,00	000,00	66,500		928,045	29,553	3.3%
	Step	# 0	#0 #0	∞	4	4	4	4	4	4	t or	י ה	י ר	7 (7				
2.5%	2022	82 534	80,745	72,849	296,99	296'99	66,967	66,967	66,967	66,967	65 742	65 742	24,00	65,40	64,539		898,492	20,510	2.3%
osal	Market Adjust	4.424	4,423	4,423	4,423	4,423	4,423	4,423	4,423	4,423	4.473	4 473	4 473	(24,4	4,423	(57,500)			
act Proposal	Pre-Contact Base	76,205	74,460	66,757	61,019	61,019	61,019	61,019	61,019	61,019	59,823	59.823	58.650	00000	00,00	57,500	877,982		
of Contr	Initials	Σ	Σ	ΚB	, Y	JR	Ŧ	AA	Σ	AZ	CD	9 Z	8) C	2				
CWA 1036 Cost of Contract	Position Id Descript	Assistant Prosecutor	TOTOLOGICAL TOTOLOGICAL	Assistant Prosecutor															

Current starting aslary \$57,500 will increase to \$61,250 for 2022.
All employees hired in 2021 will increase to \$61,250 in 2022.
All employees hired in 2021 or 2022 will be placed on step one (1)
of the guide (\$65,000) in 2023.

Prosectutor retains the right to hire, in her sole discretion, a new employee at a higher salary based upon prior experience.

		Ste	Step Guide		
	2023		2024		2025
-	65,000	Ţ	000'99	1	67,000
7	66,500	7	67,500	7	68,500
ო	68,000	m	000'69	က	70,000
4	69,500	4	70,500	4	71,500
2	71,000	ഹ	72,000	Ŋ	73,000
9	72,500	9	73,500	9	74,500
7	74,000	7	75,000	7	76,100
∞	75,500	∞	76,500	∞	77,700
თ	77,000	6	78,000	6	79,300
10	78,500	10	79,500	10	81,000

EXHIBIT B

ä	
8	
ŭ	
-	
ž	
i	
i	

-:

	2 2 2 2 2 4	II Wind Year or 12		Chenty 1'ca	7,58	14 February 31,000	The second secon	1,000;		310,000	Unitediga	Net Breakral	1.00	17 100: after desirable and 570 coney	A referral to out converse to mini a special in	Copy oppice to 12 mile			on failing 100% after deductable			Ē	•	1999			۲	Month (serliny 1000; after declarable in Outpution) facility			-	+			C CONT. BOY describie		sopay 100% after deductable and \$100 facility and	(100)	To the second	OUT'S After declarables (200 capery				100% after deductable and S40 sepay		\dagger		A160) D.C.			10014 also deductible and 540 coasy		100%-0-	1			1,100	100% after dedecible	7	1001: aflet 110 tagay office will
Ilones or a second	יי טאואוץ -		Culmbra Year		08 G	Constitution Columbia Year	\$f.day		13 000	Winite	H	獸	1005; s.Der 375 mass v	-	10% after der der der	M. Waling		Carry and	10% ofter dode till Corpsion feeling			1001		1901:	10031		100's in efficient Library	190% to effect	10% all a deductable in Outpations facility		10% After deductable	Care dedoction	10% Out 1	10% slie Adada	לנהיאות לכנה אונה אונה אונה אונה אונה אונה אונה או		toon tile sim heary copy	7,501	10% after demonstra	LOSS STOT dedertible		10% after delectale	IT's clar desectable	188	10% shar deducible	LIPS, after deducable	100% after \$30 cepar	10,24	Picture Property of	100% after deducible	(50% s)/g 550 capay	10% after deductible	1007% after affice copeyment	1001	Pris after distances in	00.100.100	1005:40-51	Trades	1	
224001			7771 January	12		300		25.00	Volumente	Universal	100 Unidered	100:: « Ber 53 cagar	1001: after 515 copay	1_	1,501	1	100% in office acting	Later of spiritual and spiritu	Committee di		1881		ion	Ither	rient)	100% in effect or Laboury	1001: 4for \$15 coper in Onlewices facility	100% that 315 cours in Orders	A) TOP I SOURCE	\$150 Capay per miseration	1380	1001	100%	1001		1001: after \$100 facisty magay	1001		100% allow 1130 cepay	ANDRES	1005:	100% and \$11 and	1007, 4 Ber 315 capay		,000	100:4 alber 313 copery		1,500.1	100% all a capay	100% s.ft.y 513 copay			1005 shar office tapayment	100%	1855	1997; 20or 53 capay	Describer 33 copey	1895.	1005's aller 313 copeyment in pilling series &	The state of the s
HONEZON EPO		Chaly Yes	New	7000	Constitution Calendar Year	e de la companya de l	17,100	23,000	Unimited	No. Required	logis and a feet	100'% after \$40 moory	A reform it and tomiers to vitt a specialist.	Court and the ten	Dynames (1534 m er cf. 34 for Membry Oberger)	***	A separate and a sepa	Transfer on the second of the		į	:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	15501	100.1	1,001		100% in Outsides facility	10011 in effec	100:5 to Outstand facility	10000	Desiring Ton usely bor edinitied	100.	100);	1001	10031	10001	today design a log leading tepsy	100%	(CC: s a Der 5700 copay	100% after 1100 cours		1007; Filer 5250 capay per admitten	1001	Area per college	10071 aller 5250 capay per administra	10011	100% efter \$40 copay	1000	and a too takey per administra	1005 sile 340 cear		1901	fill's shar affise empayanest	100:	Sao(100: 100: 100	Andreas	Mari	100%	1001s after capetyment in affice seming	The state of the s
O ESICH 18	Year The Party		Time describite per family	Mondar Year	1,04	57,000	34,600	Salvaida	The state of the s		60% after declarable	Sarisia specialiti	(Oli after ded)	7	Miletony Observed Bearing		Memora petrona			COTA (ne deductable)		COTS (no skelveshile)	(Oth for defectible)			60% sfler desfertible	CON after designable		COS: after deriverable	Co's after desbetable	190;	600: After Karteschie	60% after dechasible		50 capery	Cos stor destantistic		60's after deducable		Lank after desterrible	Seri Mer distriction	SCTA after dodocable		60% aller deducing	COSt aller despotate		MOTE after despectable	40% After delettal	62% after derbottale	0.700	AVA DIO Acto (GB)c	tors ofter deductable	60% after declarable	ted and substitution to	GO'S, after destretible	this after deductible	60% after declarable.			
HORIZOM POS DESICH IN	Caboday	Men		Lycondon Hard		31,000	Delimited	Unimited	Regul	100% shor \$10 const	1002 5 100 513 00047		Copy topics is in vita	Personal	And the second second second second seconds	100% after 513 copay			-	Š		ind;			DOS STORES OF LANCOR	100% et ellier	100% in Original facility		1383	100%	3:001	100%	1001		100% after \$100 cagesy	1005	100:5	1007		100);	100.5 allor \$15 capar	100% after 513 court	160	Dork allow \$15 const	100% sher \$15 court		log;	100% all 511 caper		100);	100% ther affect con	15 mileston marie	100.1	Child	tons efter office visit copry	100%	100%		The se still of the copy process	
		1108 1512	Dicherals in Calendar Year	607.5	3188	21,300		P. C.		CON A STANDARD LE	3	CO'S after de de constitue		of Metapological and		ton alla dotecible			62% (no deductible)		LOT's (ne deductible)	COTT In And with the	(sometime)		W. To Allies declarated to	bet, after deskeable		60% after dichectally	UTA sher decharible	10:14 allor decisionis	60" after distantial	60% after desirable		IDOTA DOS SIDO COMAY		A STATE OFFICE OF	60% after deductable	Helipakin Dille V. Na	60°1 efter des 1.11.	Chr. O. A.	(Or ally defended		60% aller desectable	Mary after despotable	Marine BING Companies	(Crit after destroy).	Mrs. after deservited.	10% after deducable		Mary Blow deductable	LOSS after deductable	COS alle deserbile	Unimited 60% after deductible	MOTS after deducable	Cari efter deductible	Hein ICO with	60% after dedectible	40% of her shadecides	wall per Linion	
Action of the second	New	Mose	Dutacials in		2750	Unimited	П	Net Dre	10011 100 100	100:14 flor \$30 copay	A referal is not service	Convenient and Convenient		THE PROPERTY IS SELECT	10013-10-10-10-1				ž.		1,00;1	1,001		1900's in allies	DOC: mortice	RUM antention facility		191	10%	16	Port	10%		LOCA A DOC	1		isi		TOT TOTAL	5-09	DOLLANCE STORESTWEEN		toy.	10074 after \$70 communi		161	10.1	100% after \$70 capavenus	10%		1997's After office capeynear	10%		HOUTH AT STATEMEN	ië.	19.7		imperio etter meramon	Laulted a aff. retrieved per Kinisa.	
Dorell Period Deductible	Facily		Calmurage	Latinidas)	Femily	Lifetime Maximum	Printery Care Phenician Scienting	Decise's Office Viets	THE OTHER VINE	Specialin Office Vini		Mistenary Vaiss			Allegy Totang and Treatment	freeding Day	Rowling Adult Physicals, GYN From	PAP, Mandogane, Pracerie Ceneral	Immediation	Well Oak Even	Well Child Improvipations and	Societing	Marie Crestains	Liberiary	Odpelient N. Ray Radiology	largeld Care	Inpation Admission	Room and Deep	Presidention Talling	Surrey in Hamisa	Washing Principe Services	Energing Ore		The State of Manage	Aubding	Herpital Orpations Suppay	Mental House C.	D	Marian	Office Series	Substitute Abuse Services	inparent.	Outstan	Office Scuing	Apparation and the second	abrical Co.	Office Schot	Other Services	Unithic Surpay	Disluctic Education		Deals Leading	Orbitis and Property	Washington and Parket	Tomas Health Care	Haspiez Cue		Internally Contracts		

Lincide Advantable
Lincide May Super benefit parish
Lincide May The Penefit parish
Lincide May The Penefit parish
Lincide May The Category
Lincide May The Category
Resident May Law Category
Resident May Law Category
May Lincide May Law Category
L

DDS stier deductable

EPO HSA Design 11